
222

Corporate & Democratic Services
www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings

Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 
Resources Agenda
Thursday, 11 February 2016 at 6.00 pm
Birch Suite, 5th Floor, Aquila House, Breeds Place, Hastings, East Sussex, TN34 3UY

For further information, please contact Michael Courts on 01424 451764 or 
mcourts@hastings.gov.uk

Page No.

1.  Apologies for Absence
2.  Declarations of Interest
3.  Minutes of the meeting held on 18 November 2015 1 - 4
4.  Quarter Three Performance and Financial Monitoring Report 5 - 38

(Jane Hartnell, Director of Corporate Services and Governance and 
Peter Grace, Assistant Director for Financial Services and 
Revenues)

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR RESOURCES

18 NOVEMBER 2015

O&S. 1

Present: Councillors Webb (Chair), Howard (Vice-Chair), Batsford, Sinden, 
Roberts, Beaver and Pragnell

7. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 10 SEPTEMBER 2015 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2015 be 
approved as a correct record

8. QUARTER TWO PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 

The Director of Corporate Services and Governance submitted a report which advised 
members of performance against the 2015/16 targets and performance indicators in 
the corporate plan for quarter 2.  The report also provided a summary of financial 
information.

The Assistant Director for Financial Services and Revenues presented an update on 
key areas of activity during this quarter.  He explained that the Legal Services team 
had been making arrangements for the lease of space at the Town Hall to East 
Sussex County Council and SEAP.  The council had previously agreed that the 
majority of its democratic and civic functions would be transferred to Aquila House.  
The Assistant Director for Financial Services and Revenues commented that staff 
across the organisation had continued to work flexibly during the office moves.

Members were advised that a busy programme of recruitment had been undertaken 
during quarter 2.  This included the appointment of two new officers to the 
accountancy team.  Discussion also took place regarding the work of the East Sussex 
Procurement Hub; an experienced member of the team had recently left the service.  
The Assistant Director for Financial Services and Revenues commented that the 
procurement hub had made arrangements to redistribute tasks amongst the team.

The committee noted that call waiting times at the Community Contact Centre had 
improved during this quarter.  The Lead Member for Corporate Services added that 
reporting of transactional enquiries, such as missed bins and fly tipping, via the My 
Hastings Online portal had increased. Consideration was given to the integration 
between the My Hastings Online portal and the council’s contractor’s systems.  The 
Accommodation and Transformation Manager explained that the team engaged with 
key contractors, including Kier, to develop this system.  The initial testing phase had 
identified some areas for improvement, which had been addressed.

Members noted that there had been an increase in short term sickness absence, and 
added that this was likely to increase further during the winter months.  The Executive 
Manager of People, Customer and Business Support explained that her team 
continued to work closely with service managers to consider sickness absences on a 
case-by-case basis and take appropriate action where necessary.

The Assistant Director for Financial Services and Revenues updated members on the 
latest in-year collection rates for council tax and non-domestic rates.  The council tax 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR RESOURCES

18 NOVEMBER 2015

O&S. 2

collection rate had increased to 73.16%, compared to 73.34% at the same point last 
year. The collection rate for non-domestic rates had also increased to 73.3%. 
Although this was slightly below the collection rate for the previous year, a number of 
customers had opted to pay their business rates over 12 months rather than 10, so the 
year end target of a 98% collection rate remained achievable.

Discussion took place regarding the benefits customer first and efficiency service 
review.  The Assistant Director for Financial Services and Revenues explained that 
the outcomes and recommendations of the review were due to be presented to senior 
managers soon. After the meeting an action plan to implement the recommendations 
would be drawn up.

Councillor Beaver thanked the Assistant Director for Financial Services and Revenues 
and his team for gaining an unqualified audit opinion on the council’s annual statement 
of accounts on behalf of the Audit Committee.  The committee also thanked the 
Assistant Director for Financial Services and Revenues for his earlier presentation on 
the medium term financial strategy.

RESOLVED (unanimously) that: - 
1) The committees comments on quarter 2 performance be addressed by 

the relevant lead member(s) with appropriate action and report back;
2) Members reflect and feedback on ways of reporting performance 

information being tested and set out in the report, and;
3) Staff in the Corporate Services and Governance Directorate be 

thanked for their hard work and achievements in this quarter

The reason for this decision was:
To assist the council enhance performance management arrangements in the context 
of broader organisational transformation. 
      

9. UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL'S ORGANISATIONAL TRANSFORMATION 
WORK PACKAGES 

The Accommodation and Transformation manager presented a report on three work 
packages, which would be delivered as part of the council’s organisational 
transformation programme.

A series of service reviews were underway across the organisation.  The purpose of 
the reviews was to ensure that the council’s processes were as efficient and 
customer-focused as possible; each review began by process mapping the existing 
process and engaging with the relevant teams.  As part of the reviews, consideration 
had also been given to the interface between council services and external 
contractors.  Following the implementation of the initial findings, the services would 
need to be subject to a further review to ensure continuous improvement and 
processes were adapted to meet the changing needs of service users.

Efforts were also underway to support internal and external communication throughout 
the council.  A communications plan had been drawn up, and a recruitment process 
was underway to appoint a new Communications Champion.  The Communications 

Page 2



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR RESOURCES

18 NOVEMBER 2015

O&S. 3

Champion will take a key role in continuing to engage staff with the transformation 
programme.  They will also promote the availability of online services to the local 
community through the council’s social media accounts and website.

The Communications Champion would also assist with the ongoing reconfiguration of 
the council’s website.  Each department within the council will be asked to review the 
content they were responsible for on the website.  The purpose of the review is to 
ensure the council’s website was fully accessible.  Alongside this process, a group of 
overview and scrutiny members were also undertaking a review of digital inclusion.

Members welcomed the update, and commented that it was helpful to understand how 
good practice developed by the individual work packages of the organisational 
transformation programme were shared between teams. 
 

10. FINAL REPORT OF THE TASK AND FINISH GROUP TO REVIEW 
SCRUTINY FUNCTIONS, PROCESS AND POTENTIAL STREAMLINING 

The Director of Corporate Services and Governance submitted a report which put 
forward recommendations from the scrutiny task and finish group which had been 
reviewing existing arrangements for overview and scrutiny.

Councillor Howard, as chair of the task and finish group presented the 
recommendations to the committee. He explained that the task and finish group had 
considered good practice from a number of other local authorities.

The task and finish group were seeking an in principle agreement from members of 
both committees, to create a single Overview and Scrutiny Committee from June 
2016, which would replace the current services and resources committee.  The task 
and finish group considered that the proposed structure better reflected the 
organisational structure of the council and would optimise the expertise of members 
and officers.  

It was intended to reconvene the task and finish group after the quarter 2 committee 
meetings to refine the details of the proposal, including the proposed number of seats 
of the committee and to make recommendations on the allocation of allowances.  The 
new structure, together with any associated constitutional changes, would then be 
considered by Cabinet and Full Council. 

The committee noted that the changes proposed by the task and finish group had 
been supported by Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Services at its meeting in 
November.  Members suggested that the re-convened task and finish group should 
seek advice from other authorities who had adopted similar arrangements for their 
overview and scrutiny function when refining their recommendations.  It was also 
agreed that the changes to the committee structure would need to coincide with a 
review of the process for reporting performance management information.

Councillor Howard proposed approval of the recommendations to the report, which 
was seconded by Councillor Pragnell.

Page 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE FOR RESOURCES

18 NOVEMBER 2015

O&S. 4

RESOLVED (unanimously) that the committee endorse the 
recommendations set out in the task and finish groups report

The reason for this decision was:
To ensure that scrutiny review and refresh existing arrangements in line with broader 
transformation efforts underway within HBC. 

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at. 7.15 pm)

Page 4



 Report Template v28.0

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny (Resources)

Date of Meeting: 11 February 2016

Report Title: Performance and Financial Monitoring Quarter 3 2015/16

Report By: Jane Hartnell
Director of Corporate Services and Governance

Purpose of Report

To advise Members of the performance against the 2015/16 targets and performance 
indicators in  the corporate plan for quarter 3 (1st October -31st December), to update 
members on other key areas of activity during  quarter 3 relevant to this committee and 
to provide a summary of financial information.    

Recommendation(s)

1.  That the Committee's comments on quarter 3 performance  be addressed by the 
relevant Lead Member(s) with appropriate action and report back.
2.  That Members reflect and feedback on ways of reporting performance information 
being tested and set out in this report. 
3. That staff in the Corporate Services and Governance Directorate be thanked for their 
hard work and achievements in this quarter.      

Reasons for Recommendations

To undertake and improve performance monitoring and management arrangements in 
the context of broader organisational transformation . 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Report Template v28.0

 

Introduction

1. The Council meeting on 25th February 2015 agreed the corporate plan for the 
period 2015/16 to 2017/18 – these documents set out the Council’s strategic 
direction and outlines associated work areas for 2015/16.

2. Transforming the council is a key focus within the corporate plan and part of this 
work is concerned with ensuring our performance management arrangements 
reflect the changing nature of the council.

3. In line with corporate plan commitments and the support of both scrutiny 
committees, the council will continue to test new ways of presenting and reviewing 
progress against our corporate plan targets as well as other key areas of 
associated work.

4. This report sets out intentions for testing approaches this quarter in combination 
with the associated performance information.

Testing new approaches

5. Since the approval of the corporate plan, the Council's senior management team 
has been restructured and members will be aware of the rapid physical 
transformation taking place at Aquila House.

6. The Council is very much a different entity than when the corporate plan was 
agreed back in February.

7. The scale and pace of organisational and cultural change means that the targets 
and activities agreed back in February do not wholly reflect a number of significant 
activities taking up officer time and resources in an increasingly changing 
environment.

Director report

8. As a result, and based on the positive feedback from Members following the 
quarter 1 and 2 meetings, Members will again receive a Director report highlighting 
significant areas for scrutiny consideration.

9. This verbal report will assist in steering the focus for scrutiny debate, covering 
exceptions and highlighting where there are deviations from expected performance 
against corporate plan targets, but also updating members on additional areas of 
activity absorbing officer time and resources.

Performance template

10. The performance template (appendix b) gives Members progress updates against 
performance targets and indicators in the current corporate plan.

11. Scrutiny Members via their discussions at Scrutiny Steering Group have expressed 
the desire to focus more on performance exceptions, rather than discussing activity 
that is on target.

Page 6



Report Template v28.0

12. The Director report will continue to assist in this regard and it is anticipated that the 
performance template will therefore increasingly serve as a background 
accompanying document.  

13. Members will be familiar with the following RAG (Red ,Amber, Green) status and 
reporting of performance indicator information in Appendix b:

Targets 'on target' or 'achieved' are identified as Green.

Targets where there is 'slippage' or 'potential slippage' are identified as Amber.

Targets that 'will not meet target' are identified as Red.

Progress against Performance Indicators for the year up to the end of the quarter 
are shown as either 'Met' or 'Not Met'. 

14. Members will also be familiar with receiving measures and a description relative to 
each target status to update members on progress against targets.

15. Performance indicators are reported as either met or unmet.  Some reporting 
includes projections or further risk and mitigation information relative to each 
performance indicator where appropriate.

Summary of Council-Wide Financial Information

16. Revenue Budget – The current forecasted outturn position at quarter 3 has been 
set at the revised budget and therefore is an overall balanced budget position with 
no variances between the revised budget and the expected outturn. The movement 
from original budget to the revised budget was an overall reduction of £157,000, 
allowing for use of reserves. Efficiency savings will continue to be identified 
wherever possible.   

17. Capital Programme –The Gross expenditure to 31st December 2016 was £3.3m 
with a full year forecast of £5.2m against a revised budget of £6.1m, which includes 
£2.2m of carry forwards.

Wards Affected

None

Policy Implications

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following:

Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17) No
Risk Management No
Environmental Issues No
Economic/Financial Implications No
Human Rights Act No
Organisational Consequences No

Page 7



Report Template v28.0

Local People’s Views No
Anti-Poverty No

Additional Information

Appendix  a Director report
Appendix b Performance template

Officer to Contact

Officer Name Mark Horan
Officer Email Address mhoran@hastings.gov.uk
Officer Telephone Number 01424 451485

Page 8



Briefing note Page 1 of 3

C:\Hastings\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\2\AI00004293\$lfdpfd20.doc

Director’s Performance 
Overview

Subject: Overview of 2015/16 quarter 3 performance – 
Corporate Services and Governance

Submitted to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee for Resources

Date: 11 February 2016

Prepared by: Jane Hartnell

Introduction

1. My overview of exceptions in performance this quarter includes reference to 
service areas and issues that impact corporately across the whole 
organisation. As we are now accustomed, detailed feedback on progress 
against individual commitments in the 2015/16 Corporate Plan are appended 
for Members information. Lead Members will be familiar with the more 
detailed issues and where necessary follow up information will be discussed 
at 1:1 meetings. 

Quarter 2 – Service performance and issues arising

2. Performance across the Directorate is mainly Green (19), with three targets 
marked as Amber and 1 Red. 

3. Performance Indicators – 6 out of 8 PIs have not been met this quarter – 
explanations are given below.

4. Service specific issues:

 People and Business Support – the ongoing additional workload 
associated with the accommodation refurbishment, transfer of functions from 
the Town Hall, and liaison with ESCC over their TH refurbishment project, is 
certainly putting strain on the very small, predominately part-time Business 
Support Staff. They are performing very well in the circumstances and are 
also implementing new technologies and systems which will help the 
organisation work more efficiently e.g. the Condeco room and desk booking 
system, as well as participating in business mapping processes to minimise 
levels of paper and mailings we send out as an organisation. The role of 
facilities management and functions expected of the team are being 
reviewed to match resources and capacity with increasing demands.

Page 9



Briefing note Page 2 of 3

C:\Hastings\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\2\AI00004293\$lfdpfd20.doc

The level of recruitment activity continues to be high and the level of staff 
employed in January 2015 is now the same number as those employed in 
January 2016, albeit in different posts.  

 Contact Centre – whilst good progress is being made in meeting customer 
demand – the team’s busiest time of year is coming up in March/April and 
planning is underway to minimise the impact on the service and other 
customers during this extremely busy time. The support of members and 
colleagues at this time is crucial. 

 Finance and Accountancy – budget preparation has been made more 
challenging this year as a result of significant changes and delayed 
announcements of funding streams. The ‘bedding in’ of four new colleagues 
has also meant this is more of a challenge that we would have liked.

All Council’s will be required to close down their 2017/18 accounts by end 
June 2018 (as opposed to September) this significant reduction in 
timescales is being prepared for with a ‘practice run’ this year and next, 
which is adding to workload pressures. 

 Electoral Services – following on from the significant workload arising from 
the completion of the transfer to the Individual Electoral Registration IER 
system, the team are preparing for the combined elections of local and 
Police and Crime Commissioner elections in May. The PCC elections use a 
different voting system and are overseen by the Police Area Returning 
Officer – both of which add an additional layer of complexity and more 
planning/liaison activity. The team are also pre-planning for the potential of 
the EU Referendum being called for any of the Thursday’s in June 2016 or 
indeed any time in the following 18 months. 

 Revenues and Benefits – Although a number of collection and performance 
targets are not currently being met, these are expected to be achieved by 
year end, once the impact of extended payment periods is accounted for. 
Business rate appeals continue to cause concern both for backdated 
payments and the impact on future income streams – a major claim has 
been received for mandatory relief from the NHS. This impacts not only on 
the financial position but also the workload of staff having to calculate 
complex payments due over many years. 

Corporate Issues

a) Management of sickness absence continue to be a challenge that HR senior 
address with managers.  There has been an increase in short term absences 
for a variety of ailments under the following generic headings: Stomach, liver, 
kidney; muscular skeletal; stress, depression, mental health (not work 
related); infections. Sickness absence continues to be robustly managed and 
each case is dealt with on its own merits. 

Long term sick cases can become protracted as we have to take into 
consideration statutory guidance on handling of long term sick cases, Equality 
Act and precedents set by Employment Tribunals when deciding how to 

Page 10



Briefing note Page 3 of 3

C:\Hastings\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\9\2\AI00004293\$lfdpfd20.doc

progress a case. HR colleagues continue to question and challenge GP’s or 
Consultant reports when applicable in order to resolve these cases.

b) The level of Freedom of Information (FOI) requests and complaints from a 
number of individuals has necessitated the application of our Unreasonable 
and Unreasonably Persistent Complainers policy. 

c) Transformation Programme 
1) Work is continuing to address issues with implementing My Hastings 

with Firmstep and third parties to ensure a seamless on-line 
experience for reporting and transacting, and responding to user 
feedback. The priority area of focus is Selective Licensing.

2) Business process mapping is continuing with service areas with the 
Transformation Team providing support, challenge and capacity to 
complete – it is acknowledged that it is a significant challenge for 
service areas to continue with the day job and undertake the review of 
processes and implementation of new ways of working. 

3) The appointment of the Customer First Communications Champion will 
enable significant progress to be undertaken with developing the 
communications strategy and roll out of key messages once agreed 
internally. This officer will also be key to facilitating the relaunch of the 
website shortly and continuing improvement to customer focussed 
communication. 

4) Work will continue into 2016/17 to identify and achieve efficiencies from 
Digital by Design and ‘doing things differently’ facilitated by new 
technology or working practices. 

5) Training is underway for key officers who will be using Mod Gov for 
report writing, prior to full launch shortly. 

d) Accommodation Project
1) Work is progressing to complete the refurbishment of the upper ground 

floor of Aquila to create the new Chamber and Committee Rooms.
2) ESCC have begun to operate out of the Town Hall following completion 

of their works.
3) The issues with heating in Aquila House are to be addressed by some 

additional works which the landlords have committed to paying 50%. 
We remain in discussions about the lifts. The scaffolding is being struck 
and completion of landlords works to the external building is nearing. 

4) The Council’s works to replace the shop front are scheduled for before 
Easter. 

Jane Hartnell, January 2016

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Corporate Services and Governance Performance Monitoring Template

Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

Contribute to 
successful 
delivery of 
HBC 
Projects

1  Legal work 
packages completed 
on schedule (to be 
planned/agreed with 
service 
departments)

Christine 
Barkshire-
Jones

G Work undertaken included:
 4 further leases and tenancy 

agreements have been 
drafted for Social Lettings 
Agency. 

 Loan agreement with the 
Source (White Rock Baths) 
completed.

 Significant levels of FOI and 
complaints

 Support for Boundary 
Review via WAG and 
consultation sessions

 Annual Return in respect of 
the Foreshore Trust was 
submitted to the Charity 
Commission before 31 
January 2016 deadline

Grant Advisory Meetings AGM

Undertake 
legal work to 
achieve HBC 
prosecutions, 
enforcement, 
property sales 
and leases, 
planning and 
contractual 

2 Levels of activity 
related to client 
department led 
demand reported to 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
quarterly.

Christine 
Barkshire-
Jones

G Work undertaken included:
 3 Section 106 planning 

agreements completed – 
incl. Mayfield J for £168,330 
affordable housing 
contribution. All three earnt 
costs as income.

 Legal work undertaken to 
support the successful sale 

P
age 13



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

obligations of a CPO property (21 
Devonshire Road) and land 
at Castle Hill Road.

 Completed a further 10 
contracts and 5 leases and 2 
licences

 Successfully taken 3 
planning prosecutions and 1 
noise nuisance case. 

 5 people paid their fixed 
penalty notices after being 
served a court summons

 Successfully applied for 18 
final charging orders 
approved by the court 
securing £56,000 of council 
tax owed and received 
£26,500 in council tax 
payment in addition.

Contribution to 
effective HBC 
Governance 

3 Levels of demand-led 
activity reported 
quarterly e.g. Advice 
to Members; support 
of decision making 
processes, design 
and review of HBC 
policies and practices 
to achieve 
compliance with 

Christine 
Barkshire-
Jones

G  Both Queensway Gateway 
and Holmhurst St Mary 
planning applications were 
brought before planning 
committee in December, 
both required significant 
legal resource prior to being 
considered by committee.

 Licensing Committee has 
been very busy with 

Further Constitutional amendments

P
age 14



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

legislation and good 
practice.

applications very much in the 
public interest. However, the 
Council have not as yet 
received any appeals against 
member’s decisions.

 The Council’s Corporate 
Complaints Policy and a 
Document Retention Policy 
have been refreshed.

 The Council’s Constitution 
has been further amended to 
reflect the last senior 
management re-structure 
and changes in              
Legislation.

Complete Digital 
by Design Project 
year 1 work 
packages 

4 a) Promotion of new 
self-service portal to 
encourage customer 
channel shift) Staff 
trained in coaching 
skills to help 
customers self-serve 
c) Contribute to 
service process 
mapping from initial 
points of contact d) 
Customer surgeries 
for Firmstep training 
helde) Assisted digital 

Natasha 
Tewkesbury

G Work undertaken included:
 Continued to promote 

MyHastings during telephone 
contact with customers.

 Form building for Electoral 
Services and Housing 
Renewal.

 Testing of online 
Environmental Health 
processes.

 Housing benefits account 
look up on Myhastings being 
developed. 

 Online Selective Licensing 

1. Arrange and provide customer 
surgeries for Firmstep. 2. Training 
undertaken with Contact Centre 
staff on revised Housing Options 
service and implementation of new 
processes. 3.Environmental 
Health, Housing Renewal, 
Electoral Services and Housing 
Options processes Live on 
Firmstep 4. Identify and start 
process mapping additional service 
areas for Firmstep integration. 5. 
Provision of additional computers 
in the Contact Centre for customer 

P
age 15



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

support mechanisms 
for those unable to 
access services on-
line identified

application process 
implemented.

use. 6. Provide drop in sessions 
and support for Customers 
including floor walkers. 7. Link with 
other sectors and organisations to 
provide services and training for 
digital access for customers

Continue to 
improve customer 
experience

5 (a) Continue to 
improve the quality 
and timeliness of 
personal and 
telephone caller’s 
experience of using 
our service, with a 
focus on ‘right first 
time’. 
(b) Work with 
colleagues to 
continually refine and 
improve the customer 
journey, from first 
point of contact to 
resolution, based on 
intelligence gained 
from monitoring 
customer enquiries 
and feedback 
opportunities.
Arrive at indicators of 
performance and 

Natasha 
Tewkesbury

G Work undertaken included:
 New CSOs undertaken 

training in the general 
service areas in the Contact 
Centre. 

 Joint shadowing with 
Revenues and Benefits staff 
to develop skills and identify 
improvements. 

 Dementia Awareness 
training for all Contact 
Centre staff and Contact 
Centre is dementia friendly 
environment. 

 Development of performance 
management process for 
Contact Centre staff.

 Analysis of Firmstep data 
and channel shift, data 
reports being trialled with 
service departments to 
inform service delivery 
issues.

1.. Continue to develop customer 
intelligence and data to inform 
service delivery. 2.Undertake 
customer satisfaction surveys 3. 
Undertake review of reception 
function and layout in the Contact 
Centre. 4. Implement performance 
management process for staff. 5. 
Review of Council Tax annual 
billing and end of year processes 
and identify improvements to 
customer journey at the busiest 
time of year.

P
age 16



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

customer satisfaction 
(measurable by the 
Firmstep software) as 
part of the Digital by 
Design project during 
2015/16.

Contribute to 
evidence based 
decision-making 
by provision of 
accurate 
management 
information and 
data analysis 
services for 
projects and 
services

6 a) Efficiency and 
Customer First 
Service Reviews with 
data analysis and 
review supported – 
(programme TBA)b) 
Seek customer 
insight via surveys on 
behalf of services and 
undertake bespoke 
analysis when 
required c) Analysis 
of statistics provided 
as required e.g. next 
Index of Multiple 
Deprivation (IMD) is 
due to be published 
in summer 2015.

Jane Hartnell G a) Service reviews underway in 
line with migrating appropriate 
services to Firmstep / My 
Hastings. There is a delay to the 
conclusion of the benefits 
review.
b) Corporate My Hastings 
database queries developed in 
consultation with contact centre 
and staff teams.
c) An analysis of IMD data has 
been completed and shared with 
Members and partners to inform 
next steps.

b) Database goes live. c) Database 
and analysis to date reviewed and 
processes amended if/where 
appropriate.

Support and 
equip Members 
to effectively 
undertake their 
roles and 

7 a) Scrutiny annual 
work programme 
developed, agreed 
and completed to 
time, cost and 

Mark Horan G Scrutiny reviews, Task and 
Finish Group and other Q3 
commitments completed as 
agreed in the joint programme.
b) Q2 Performance 

a) Scrutiny reviews and Task and 
Finish Group and other Q4 
commitments underway as agreed 
in the joint programme.b) Q3 
Performance arrangements 

P
age 17



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

responsibilities in 
a changing 
environment

specification.b) 
Corporate plan 
commitments 
effectively monitored 
through the council’s 
overview and scrutiny 
function.c) Member 
support, training and 
development 
facilitated to ensure 
members are 
equipped to fulfil their 
duties effectively.

arrangements analysed, refined 
and lessons learned informing 
approaches used for Q3. 
c) Member training and Dev. 
Group met to monitor training 
and support needs during Q3.

analysed and refined. Template for 
planning 2016/17 targets 
workplans cascaded and 
completed.c) Member training and 
Dev. Group met to monitor training 
and review the forthcoming 
induction programme in Q4.d) 
Outstanding scrutiny reviews or 
scheduled task and finish groups 
completed in line with the work 
programme. 

Continue to 
support local 
democracy by the 
effective delivery 
of electoral 
services 
activities.

8 a) Statutory 
timetables and 
performance 
standards met in line 
with Electoral 
Commission 
requirements for 
management of the 
2015 General 
Election. b) Transition 
to Individual Electoral 
Registration 
completed and new 
‘normal’ 
arrangements to be 
embedded.c) 

Katrina 
Silverson

G a) ACHIEVED

b) Annual household canvass 
completed in line with statutory 
deadlines and revised electoral 
register published 1 December 
2015.  This date also marked 
the end of transition to IER, 
meaning final processes to 
publish the first full IER electoral 
register have been completed 
and normal ‘business as usual’ 
arrangements successfully 
implemented.
c) Working with members, a 
review of the boroughs warding 

 Pre-planning events to 
concentrate on delivery of 
successful local elections and 
Police and Crime 
Commissioner elections in May 
2016. 

 Conduct personal identifier 
refresh for postal voter with 
postal votes that are over 5 
years old.

P
age 18



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

Contribute to the 
Boundary Review for 
electoral wards in 
Hastings and East 
Sussex

patterns was carried out in order 
to achieve greater electoral 
equality in accordance with the 
LGBCE guidance. The Councils 
submission was sent to the 
LGBCE as part of their public 
consultation by the 30th 
November 2015. A draft report 
from the LGBCE with the new 
proposed ward boundaries is 
expected by mid-march, and the 
Council will have until the 16th 
June 2016 to comment. Final 
recommendations from the 
LGBCE will be made in 
September 2016. 

Lead the 
redesign of the 
council’s 
business 
processes, 
corporate 
planning and 
performance 
management 
arrangements in 
line with the 
council’s 
Efficiency and 

9 a) Manage the 
council’s 
Transformation 
programme to time, 
cost and specification 
b) Associated 
corporate work 
packages delivered c) 
Corporate planning 
and associated 
performance 
management 
arrangements 

Jane Hartnell / 
Stephen 
Dodson

A See transformation programme

P
age 19



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

Transformation 
programme

refreshed

We recognise 
that our residents 
come from 
diverse 
backgrounds. Our 
2015/16 equality 
objectives are to:
1. Develop a 
workforce that 
feels valued, 
respected and is 
reflective of the 
diverse 
communities we 
serves.
2. Deliver 
services which 
are accessible 
and welcoming to 
all communities 
and are capable 
of responding to 
the different 
needs and 
aspirations our 
customers have.
3. Celebrate the 

10 a) Via Equalities 
Impact Assessments 
demonstrate that our 
policies and practices 
are not inherently 
discriminatory and do 
not disadvantage any 
particular group on 
unjustifiable grounds 
in their application.
(All services)
b) Provide a training 
package to ensure all 
staff and Councillors 
have a clear 
understanding of 
equalities legislation 
based on the 
Equalities Act 2010. 
(POD)
c) Use technology 
and creative 
techniques best 
suited to different 
population groups in 
line with the digital 
inclusion work 

Jane Hartnell / 
Shabana 
Bayjou / Verna 
Connolly

G a) Equalities Impact 
Assessments are ongoing. A 
timetable of EIAs is in place. 
The website is currently being 
reviewed and will be updated in 
Qtr 4. Equalities report to be 
published in January 2016.
b) e-learning package 
developed and undergoing 
testing prior to launch in Qtr 4
c) Digital Inclusion work 
package progressed informed 
by the Digital Inclusion scrutiny 
review
d) Annual data report to be 
published as part of the 
workforce profile at the 
beginning of Qtr 4.  Further work 
is being undertaken in order to 
publish a quarterly dashboard 
update. 

Digital Inclusion scrutiny review 
completed 
Public Sector Equality Duty 
information published (January 
2016)

P
age 20



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

diversity of 
Hastings so the 
Borough is an 
increasingly 
cohesive place 
where people 
from all 
communities get 
on well together.

package in the 
council’s 
transformation and 
efficiency programme 
(Corporate and 
Democratic)
d) Demonstrate 
compliance with the 
Public Sector Equality 
Duty which requires 
public bodies to 
publish information 
relating to employees 
who share protected 
characteristics 
annually. (POD)

Ensure the 
recruitment of a 
permanent 
complement of 
high calibre 
managers and 
staff

11 a) Recruitment and 
Selection policy and 
procedure and 
processes reviewed. 
b) Induction 
arrangements 
reviewed and 
subsequent activities 
implemented.

Verna 
Connolly

G Succession Planning approach 
developed and work being 
undertaken to establish a 
programme for aspiring 
managers/ leaders.
 Updated Attendance Policy 

and procedure and 
Whistleblowing Policy.

 E-learning modules added 
include customer services, 
Data Protection, Working 
with Children and Young 
people.

Investigating options for member 
e-learning with the Local 
Government Association.
Development and implementation 
of models and approaches to 
develop leadership, develop 
potential and deliver high 
performance -  ongoing work 
through to QTR1/2 2016. 

P
age 21



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

 AA driver awareness 
learning package approved 
being rolled out 

Support the 
Council to 
compete in a 
competitive 
labour market to 
recruit and retain 
talented staff

12 a) Workforce 
development action 
plan drafted and 
consultation with 
Trade Unions 
completed. 
b) Publicise and roll 
out workforce 
development action 
plan.

Verna 
Connolly

G Workforce development project 
planning stages compelted – 
bulk of work will be undertaken 
in Qtr 4
 A further 14 recruitment 

campaigns undertaken – 10 
appointments made, 3 being 
interviewed this month with 
the Communications Officer 
post being re-advertised as 
we were unable to appoint.

 HR trained in Local 
Government Job evaluation 
process.

Workforce planning undertaken at 
Directorate/Service level in QTR4.  
The project to include:
 Reviewing organisational 

staffing costs, including 
turnover, sickness, salaries, 
performance, training and 
development.

 Identifying future needs of 
service areas.

 Reviewing appraisal system 
and initiating changes to the 
appraisal framework to support 
the connection with workforce 
planning and succession 
planning

 Workforce development 
plan(WDP) draft action plan 
prepared ( may be delayed until 
Qtr1/2, 2016. 

 People strategy to be reviewed, 
amended and aligned to the 
revised Corporate Plan to 
ensure it reflects the council’s 
current and desired position. 

P
age 22



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 
 Job evaluation benchmarking 

project to commence QTR 4. 

Provide HR 
support in line 
with the Council’s 
transformation 
and efficiency 
programme. 

13 a) E-appraisal 
schemed designed 
and introduced to 
ensure performance 
is in line with strategic 
targets
b) Staff survey 
conducted (June 
2015 ), results and 
associated action 
plan disseminated 
(Sept 2015)
c) Proactive support 
and guidance on the 
implementation of 
restructuring 
delivered including 
identifying training 
needs in response to 
change.

Verna 
Connolly

G Skills audit update being 
undertaken 70 % response rate. 
 Supported managers to 

release savings through 
restructuring in Country Park 
Rangers, estate rangers and 
Waste Management – 
including TUPE, 
Redeployment and 
Redundancy. 

 Supported restructure of 
Planning Service teams to 
improve efficiency in 
planning administration and 
offering opportunities for 
professional development 
from apprentice to Planning 
Asst.  Providing opportunities 
for professional development 
– growing own planners . 

 E-appraisals well received -  
Managers receive 1-1 
training from POD to ensure 
consistency of approach

Six monthly review of e-appraisal 
sample to check quality levels 
(up/down linking of objectives) 
reports to DMT's

Appraisals monitored in real time 
following the implementation of 
electronic notifications to the POD 
inbox once a completed appraisal 
is submitted to an individual’s Trent 
record.

P
age 23



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

Performance 
Indicators

Targets Met / 
Not 
Met

Performance to end of Q3

Reduce the 
proportion of 
working day/shifts 
lost due to 
sickness absence 
to 6.25

7.1 Q1 - 1.55
Q2 - 3.15
Q3 - 4.70
Q4 - 6.25

Verna 
Connolly

Not 
Met

Q1 - 1.98
Q2 - 4.06
Q3 - 5.42

Comments:
There has been an increase in 
short term absences for a 
variety of ailments under the 
following generic headings: 
Stomach, liver, kidney; muscular 
skeletal; stress, depression, 
mental (not work related|); 
infections. Long term sickness 
falls under neurological; other. 
Sickness absence continues to 
be robustly managed and each 
case is dealt with on its own 
merits. 
Long term sick cases can 
become protracted as we have 
to take into consideration 
statutory guidance on handling 
of long term sick cases, Equality 
Act and precedents set by 
Employment Tribunals when 
deciding how to progress a 

  

P
age 24



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

case. We continue to question 
and challenge GP’s or 
Consultant reports when 
applicable in order to resolve 
these cases.

Reviewing our occupational 
health provision via the 
Procurement Hub who have a 
framework agreement with 
Healthcare Management 

Reduce the 
proportion of 
working day/shifts 
lost due to short 
term sickness 
absence

7.1a (7.1a&b No targets 
have been set for 
these indicators, they 
are simply provided 
for additional 
information and 
context.)

Verna 
Connolly

Q1 - 1.12
Q2 - 2.38
Q3 - 3.33

Reduce the 
proportion of 
working day/shifts 
lost due to long 
term sickness 
absence

7.1b (7.1a&b No targets 
have been set for 
these indicators, they 
are simply provided 
for additional 
information and 
context.)

Verna 
Connolly

Q1 - 0.86
Q2 - 1.68
Q3 - 2.09
 

P
age 25



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

Promote a culture 
of transparency in 
everything the 
Council does. 

14 a) Details of Council 
assets, pay policy, 
senior management 
salaries, resources, 
decision making, 
contracts and 
spending published to 
aid transparency. b) 
Freedom of 
Information and other 
data requests 
responded to within 
legislative timescales 
– levels reported to O 
& S quarterly c) 
Complaints analysis 
and learning 
opportunities reported 
quarterly, facilitated 
by the new 
complaints recording 
process.

Jane Hartnell G a) Revised Pay Policy due for 
approval at Full Council in 
February 2016 
b) 210 FOI have been received 
this quarter, 6 of these are 
outstanding. 
c) Corporate complaints 
continue to be addressed in a 
timely manner. This quarter out 
of 102 complaints received 7 are 
outstanding.  
The FOI roll out onto My 
Hastings is being soft tested and 
work underway to move the 
complaints process onto My 
Hastings - will be soft tested 
during Q4.

b) Roll out FOIs on My Hastings c) 
Roll out complaints on My Hastings 
d) Review FOI roll out. e) Review 
complaints roll out.

Achieve an 
unqualified audit 
opinion for the 
annual statement 
of accounts. 

15 Unqualified audit 
opinion gained by 
30th September

Peter Grace G An unqualified opinion on the 
2014/15 accounts has been 
achieved

P
age 26



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

Maintain the high 
occupancy of 
industrial units 
against a 
background of an 
uncertain 
economic 
environment. 

16 Percentage of void 
industrial units and 
actual income versus 
the budget. 

Amy Terry G Occupancy figures are as 
follows: Factory Units – 61 units 
let 1 units vacant 1.6% void 
(unchanged). Castleham 
Business Centre West – 19 
units let 1 units vacant 5% void 
(15% Q2). Castleham Business 
Centre East – all 17 units let 0% 
void (5.9% Q2)
The high occupancy rates 
resulted in the draft revised 
budget being  increased by 
£80,000. The total revised 
budgeted income, including cost 
recovery, amounting to £3.312m 
in 2015/16 across the three 
main Estate related budget 
centres. Whilst extremely good 
news – the Council has recently 
been given notice on two units.

Monitor 
developments in 
the rollout of the 
Government’s 
new ‘Universal 
Credit’ scheme 
and take 
appropriate 
action as 

17 Submit updates to 
Cabinet and 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees 
when further steps 
are clarified, identify 
the implications for 
the Council and the 
community, and 

Jean Saxby G As at 31 December 2015, 41 
claimants have had their 
Housing Benefit cancelled as 
they are now receiving Universal 
Credit.

21 claims have been 
reassessed due to non-
dependants (adults in the 

Progress continues to be slow. A 
revised timetable from Department 
for Work and Pensions is expected 
during January 2016 which will 
provide details of roll out dates for 
all claim types and also details of 
the migration/transfer of existing 
working age caseload.

P
age 27



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

necessary. implement revised 
working 
arrangements as 
appropriate.
 

household other than the 
claimant/partner) being in 
receipt of Universal Credit. 

Review the 
current Council 
Tax Support 
Scheme and 
consider 
implications for 
2016/17 onwards. 

18 Current Council Tax 
Support System 
reviewed

Jean Saxby G 2016/17 Council Tax Support 
Scheme has been considered 
and Council agreed on 16 
December 2015 that the 
scheme would remain 
unchanged for 2016/17.

Implement the 
outcomes of the 
Benefits 
‘Customer First 
and Efficiency’ 
Service Review

19 The review to be 
undertaken by 
Shelter to completed 
in the early part of 
2015/16 and 
subsequent actions 
implemented as 
timetabled

Jean Saxby R Still awaiting summary report 
from Shelter.

Report which will include 
recommendations is now 
scheduled for January 2016.
At the time of writing this update, 
report has not been received.

It is now unlikely that the outcomes 
will be implemented by 31 March 
2016. 

Continue to 
deliver the annual 
Audit Plan and 
report outcomes 
to the Audit 
Committee

20 Comparison of audits 
completed against 
those on the 
published audit plan 
reported in the annual 
audit report.

Tom Davies A The Housing Benefit Subsidy 
Grant work started well but there 
were delays experienced. The 
Auditors have yet to sign off the 
council’s claim. 

We are temporarily short staffed 
but the Chief Auditor is confident 

To have completed the annual 
audit plan and achieved the 
deadlines for completion of the 
Intrnational Auditing Standards 
work. 

P
age 28



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

that the plan can be achieved. 
Two audits are being 
undertaken by an external firm. 
    

Continue to 
maximise the 
benefits from the 
Council’s 
procurement 
arrangements, 
working in 
collaboration with 
other local 
authorities, the 
East Sussex 
Procurement Hub 
and other 
partners.

21 Value for money 
contracts secured, 
savings achieved and 
procurement 
arrangements 
completed.

Tom Davies G The following procurement 
activity was concluded during 
quarter 3 by the East Sussex 
Procurement Hub:

A) Hastings Business 
Improvement District 
Consultancy Support 
Services.  Contract awarded 
October 2015.

B) Castleham Estate Works. 
Re-issued in October 2015.  
Bids returned November 
2015 with recommendation 
and award in December 
2015.

C) Consultation, Research and 
Development – Health and 
Wellbeing Centres in 
Hastings and St Leonards.  
Returns received November 
2015 and awarded in 
December 2015.  

Promenade Improvement Works 
requirement to be redesigned and 
reissued in January 2016.

Tenders for Hastings Country Park 
to be issued in January 2016.

Rock-A-Nore Retaining Wall to be 
issued.

Soft Market Test for Public 
Convenience and Building 
Cleaning Service.

Tenders for Hastings Castle Public 
Convenience Extension to be 
issued January 2016.

Stock Condition Survey for 
Hastings and Rother.

Adoption of revised Contract 
Procurement Regulations into 
Financial Operating Procedures.

Development of Work Programme 

P
age 29



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

D) Hockey Pavillion Demolition- 
Bexhill Road Hastings.  
Original not awarded due to 
quotations being incomplete 
or over budget. Reissued in 
November 2015 and 
recommendation made in 
December 2015. Planned 
award in January 2016.  

E) Provision of a “Limited 
Period Free to User” wireless 
network service.  Following 
soft market test the tender 
issued in December 2015 
with award planned for 
February 2016.

F) Audio Visual Equipment for 
Hastings Council Chamber. 
Quotations issued in 
December 2015 with award 
planned for February 2016.

  

for 2016/17

P
age 30



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

Performance 
Indicators

Targets Met / 
Not 
Met

Performance to end of Q3

Increase the % of 
Council Tax 
collected in year 
to 96.3%

6.1 Q1 - 35.4%
Q2 - 63.1%
Q3 - 90.2%
Q4 - 96.3%

Jean Saxby Not 
Met

Q1 - 34.6%
Q2 - 61.6%
Q3 - 88.4%

With more customers choosing to 
pay their Council Tax over 12 
months instead of 10, we will not 
have the true collection picture 
until end of March 2016. However 
indications are that we will meet 
the target of 96.3%.

Increase the % of 
non domestic 
rates collected in 
year to 98%

6.2 Q1 - 35.0%
Q2 - 59.5%
Q3 - 84.1%
Q4 - 98.0%

Jean Saxby Met Q1 - 32.4%
Q2 - 58.1%
Q3 - 84.5%

Still on target for 98%.

Reduce the 
average number 
of days to 
process new 
housing benefits 
claims to 15

6.3 Q1 – 15
Q2 – 15
Q3 – 15
Q4 - 15

Jean Saxby Met Q1 - 15.2
Q2 - 15.0
Q3 - 14.8

Still on target for 15 days.

The current average processing 
time nationally is 24 days.

Reduce the 
average number 
of days to 
process changes 
to housing benefit 
claims to 5

6.4 Q1 – 5
Q2 – 5
Q3 – 5
Q4 - 5

Jean Saxby Not 
Met

Q1 - 9.2
Q2 - 8.2
Q3 - 8.5

Forecast for end of March 2016 is 
7.5 days.

The current average processing 
time nationally is 9 days.

P
age 31



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

Reduce the 
average number 
of days to 
process new 
Council Tax 
Reduction claims 
to 15

6.5 Q1 – 15
Q2 – 15
Q3 – 15
Q4 - 15

Jean Saxby Not 
Met

Q1 - 16.6
Q2 - 16.0
Q3 - 15.8

Forecast for end of March 2016 is 
15 days.

No national figures are recorded by 
DWP.

Reduce the 
average number 
of days to 
process changes 
to Council Tax 
Reduction claims 
to 5

6.6 Q1 – 5
Q2 –5
Q3 –5
Q4 - 5

Jean Saxby Not 
Met

Q1 - 7.0
Q2 - 6.6
Q3 - 6.9

Forecast for end of March 2016 is 
6 days.

No national figures are recorded by 
DWP.

Provide a 
comprehensive 
communications 
service for the 
Council (internal 
and external)

22 Web visits and page 
views increased by 
5% year on year, 
increase number of 
twitter and Facebook 
followers by 10% 
over year.

Kevin 
Boorman

G Facebook likes are up from 
3749 to 3930, and our Twitter 
followers up from 3584 to 3714 
this quarter

Increase visits to 
the Borough 
website to 
1,600,000

5.1 Q1 - 400,000
Q2 - 800,000
Q3 - 1,200,000
Q4 - 1,600,000

Kevin 
Boorman

Not 
Met

Q1 - 405,729
Q2 - 828,122
Q3 - 1,182,067

Website visits to the end of Q3 
were slightly below target, but 

NB New website to be launched in 
Spring to compliment the My 
Hastings approach to customer 
service

P
age 32



Target No. Measures Lead Officer RAG Q3 Performance Forward Looking Targets / 
Milestones to 31st March 2016 

are expected to meet the target 
for the year overall.

Continue the 
implementation of 
the ICT review.
Work with 
colleagues and 
other partners to 
develop and 
introduce a more 
user-friendly, and 
transactional, 
website
Continue to 
maintain the 
Council’s IT 
network, and 
provide IT 
support to enable 
the smooth 
running of the 
Council.

23 ICT review 
recommendations 
implemented on time 
and on budget, 
website content 
streamlined, 95% of 
all Helpdesk calls 
within target time 
resolved and a 
network availability of 
99% achieved.

Jane Hartnell / 
Stephen 
Dodson / Mark 
Bourne

A Main targets contained within 
the transformation programme.

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



TRANSFORMATION 

PROGRAMME

Actions 

& 

Progres

Date:08/01/16 Version: Final

Project Ref No. Description Project Start 

Date

Project 

Completion 

Date

Project Lead/Project 

Manager 

Previous  Quarter (Q1 1st April - 

30th June 2015 Q3 1st July - 

30th Sptember)

Previous  Quarter (Q2 - 1st 

July -30th September 2015)

Targets/Milestones for Quarter 3 - 1st 

October- 31st December 2015) 

RAG Risks/ Issues Mitigation Targets/Milestones for 

Quarter 4 -1st January 

31st March 2016 
Process Review & 

Design 

WP01 Provide clear guidelines on how to 

analyse existing service delivery and 

identify better ways of working through 

business process mapping (BPM).  

Rollout BPM across all service areas. 

01/10/14 26/11/15 Stephen Dodson 1.  Corporate Business Process 

Mapping (BPM) guidelines 

produced Service Managers 

briefed.  2. Customer Journey 

mapping for CCC process 90 % 

complete 3. BPM's completed for 

Waste (Kier); Housing Renewal; 

Housing Options; Environmental 

Services (90%) 

1. Services identified for 

Business Reviews including  

Building Control; Planning; 

Finance; Legal. 2. Parks & 

Gardens to be BPM'd and 

transferred to Firmstep. 3. 

Customer Journey mapping 

completed for CCC. 

1. Complete BPM with identified services 

areas. 2. Identify and start next service 

areas for BPM

G/A 1. BPM has revealed 

the scale of the task for 

some service areas to 

address

1. Transformation 

Team to assist 

Service areas 

adressiung issues. 

1. Continue  BPM roll out  

across service areas

Customer First 

Strategy 

WP02 Define and communicate the Customer 

First strategy. Focussed on meeting 

customer needs

10/02/15 27/10/15 Sue Large 1. Draft Strategy Produced 1. Strategy to be finalised Strategy to be signed off G/A 1. Strategy not clearly 

focussed and 

corporately adopted 

need. 

1. Ensure strategy 

has meaning and 

relevance for 

organisation and 

customers see 

difference 

1. Stategy to be rolled out 

across organisation.

Communications 

and Organisational 

Change

WP03 Improved internal and external 

communications to provide clear, 

uncluttered, and relevant messages

24/04/15 02/02/16 Stephen Dodson 

(Until Comms Officer 

is in post  Q3)

1. Draft communications strategy 

produced

1. Recruit specialist Customer 

First Communications Officer. 

2. Sign off and start roll-out of 

communications plan. 3. Start 

on internal change 

programme-staff training, 

awareness raising. 

1. Recruit Communications Officer 2. 

Evaluate Internal messaging and consider 

what more needs to be done. 3. Start on 

external change programme - e.g. CCC role 

in shifting customer behaviour, 'Time & 

Attention', work to increase take up of On-

Line 'My Hastings'. 

G/A 1. Complexity of 

messages to be 

communicated to 

internal and external 

stakeholders and 

customers  2. Delay on 

recruitment of 

Communciations 

Officer 

1. Clear comms plan 

showing the  right 

message to the right 

person in the right 

way. 2. Need to 

expedite recruitment 

of Communciations 

Officer  3. Start 

communicating core 

messages to 

Members and Staff. 

1. Continuation of Customer 

First communications for 

wider roll-out and increase 

uptake of online services to 

60% of all interactions via 

My Hastings.

Agreed Design 

principles for 

communication 

channels

WP04 A new look and feel to the website and 

other communication channels to provide 

a modern and relevant interface for all 

customers.

08/05/15 26/11/15 Mark Bourne (Until 

Comms Officer is in 

Post Q3) 

1.  Assessment of current HBC 

website offering - 'fit for purpose' 

checks underway. 2. Assessment 

of current Content Management 

System (CMS)completed.

1. Recruit specialist Customer 

First Communications Officer. 

2. Refreshed web content for 

Hastings online. 3. 

Implementation of CMS 4. 

Undertake review of Intranet 

and all internal comms. 5. 

Undertake review of HBC's 

use of social media.

1. Review of existing web pages and move 

to new testing site 2. Recruit 

Communications Officer. 

G/A  1. Service Areas may 

be reluctant to have 

certain information 

removed from existing 

web site. 2.  Delay on 

recruitmenst of 

Communciations 

Officer 

1. Clearly 

communicate to 

service areas the 

need for relevant and 

where possible 

transactional content 

only. 2 . 

Communications 

Officer to start 

4/01/16

1. Soft  Launch new look 

website. 2. Roll-out of CMS 

to trained service content 

providers. 3. Soft-launch 

new look Intranet 4. Soft 

launch of social media 

platforms (if applicable) 

Implementation of 

Firmstep (CRM) 

(phase 1)

WP05 My Hastings Online. The new purpose 

built customer relationship management 

(CRM) system that will improve the 

interactions and transactions between 

customers and the council

20/10/04 27/10/15 Mark Bourne/Sue 

Large

1. Firmstep Customer 

Relationship Management (CRM) 

system installed. 2. Kier Waste 

management services process 

completed and uploaded. 3. My 

Account (part 1 - Council tax look 

up and personal log in) Live 4. 

FOI's and 3 C's being developed 

5. Soft launch of My Hastings with 

'Report It' feature enabled and 

soft testers recruited. 6. 

Successful integration of 'Self' 

(Customer Forms) 

1. Prioritising of Firmstep 

Integrations:  a) Complete 

Zeacom integration b) 

Address technical glitches c) 

Agree protocol for Kier way 

'Completed' tasks d) Form 

building for Housing Options 

e) Go live with FOI's & 3C's. f) 

Continue integration of 

Housing Licensing g) Start 

moving existing CRM 

processes onto Firmstep g) 

Implement payment form and 

payment process  2. Develop 

Phase 2 requirements. 

1. Go live with Housing Options 2. Go live 

with Housing Licensing 3 Transfer of all 

remaining processes on CRM to Firmstep 

G/A 1. Go live with Housing 

Options delayed due to 

3rd party supplier 2. 

Selective Licensing 

complexity of forms 

and no incentive to sign 

up until final week of 

'early bird ' offer.  

1. 3rd party supplier 

working to rectify 

issue as soon as 

possible 2. Keep 

refining form on 

basis of feedback 

from users.

1. Confirm phase 2 

requiremenst 2 Complete 

tranfser of servcie areas to 

Firmstep. 3. Full launch of 

My Hastings. 

P
age 35



Addressing digital 

exclusion ‘Digital by 

Design’

WP06 Transforming our service processes to 

enable them to be accessed on-line by 

all. This will include:  Identifying current 

levels of digital access and barriers; 

Identifying EU funding opportunities; 

working in partnership; creating a Digital 

by Choice Plan. 

01/04/15 10/05/16 Sue Large 1. Community and Voluntary 

sector partners informed and 

promoting soft-launch of My 

Hastings online 2. Information on 

national and local digital inclusion 

gathered and ready to be utilised 

when project starts

1. Initial identification of who 

are the 'digitally excluded' 

within the borough and 

commission research 2. 

Undertake internal audit of 

how services are currently 

being accessed and where 

possible by whom and how. 

1. Link to O&S Digiatl Exclusion review. G/A None at this stage n/a 1. Research brief drawn up. 

2. Research commissioned. 

3. Research completed.4.  

Identify potential 

EU/Government  funds for 

digital inclusion projects. 5. 

Research analysed. 6. 

Digital by Choice (Channel 

Shift) plan drawn up. 4. 

Implement Digital by Choice 

(Impact to be reviewed Q2 

2016) plus include date from 

O&S review. 

Project Ref 

Number 

Description Project Start 

Date

Project 

Completion 

Date

Project Lead/Project 

Manager 

Previous  Quarter (Q1 1st April - 

30th June 2015)

Previous Quarter (Q2 - 1st 

July -30th September 2015)

Targets/Milestones for Quarter 3 - 1st 

October- 31st December 2015) 

RAG Risks/ Issues Mitigation Targets/Milestones for 

Quarter 4 -1st January 

31st March 2016 
Efficiency savings WP07 Undertaking further reviews of costs and 

implementing agreed service 

improvements by a combination of 

process re-design, ICT solutions and 

improved customer focus. 

08/12/14 02/02/16 Stephen Dodson 1. Implementation and monitoring 

of Uniflow to identify levels of 

internal printing cost (c£60K per 

annum). 2. Initial review of service 

area costs:  IT systems; Energy; 

External printing; Postage; 

Internal waste. 3. Business 

Process Mapping of Building 

Control Started. 

1. Complete Efficiency 

Savings Report and make 

recommendations to PIER 2. 

Produce Efficiency 

implementation plan. 

1.Complete and  Implement Efficiency 

Savings Plan

G/A 1. Plan has highlighted 

need to do more 

extensive monitoring of 

service area cost

1. Monitoring plan 

and template 

developed. 

1. Implement efficiencies 

monitoring plan across 

service areas

Financial system 

interfaces (A)

WP08 

(A)

1. Upgrade of Paye.Net Cash Receipting 

System to a newer version (9

26/02/15 16/11/15 Kit Wheeler 1. Partial testing on ACR, 

Paye.net, AIM. 2. Imports are 

working with exceptions.

1. Further testing and analysis 

after issues has been 

identified by external 

consultants which resulted in a 

delay to the original go live 

date.

1. Upgrade of system was completed in 

November with all users moved across to 

the new version of Paye.net, offering better 

reporting functionality for finance and now 

the version is fully supported by external 

providers.

2.. Financial savings for a licence fee which 

has been identified as being redundant in 

the new system relating to cheque 

processing which is still in the process of 

being negotiated with our external providers 

Capita. New reduced fee from April 2016 to 

be confirmed.

Project debrief 

session planned for 

Friday 8
th
 January to 

discuss any 

implementation 

issues and ways of 

improving working 

relationship between 

Finance and IT 

departments.

1. Successful closure of 

accounts at the year-end of 

31st March

Financial system 

interfaces (B)

WP08 

(B)

Undertake analysis of existing financial 

system interfaces – specifically paye.net 

and AXIS Income Management (AIM)/ 

Aggresso/Trent in order to identify and 

potentially implement most efficienct and 

effective Enterprise Resource Planning 

System (ERP)

01/11/15 31/03/16 Kit Wheeler N/A N/A Undertake an initial review, using external 

professional  demonstrations of potential 

systems as well as business mapping the 

current processes, looking at potential 

improvements. Business mapping process 

was started as part of overall Finance 

mapping, further discussions still to take 

place in QTR 4. Demonstrations for new 

systems / add-on’s booked for Wednesday 

13
th
 January

To be identified and 

analysed.  

TBC when plan agreed

P
age 36



Housing – 

Additional, 

Mandatory and 

Selective Licensing

WP09 To implement an on-line housing 

licensing scheme for the existing 

additional and mandatory licensing 

schemes and prepare the on-line version 

of the proposed Selective Licensing 

scheme.  These areas will be fully 

integrated into the Firmstep CRM 

system.

23/02/15 15/11/15 Matt China/Tracy 

Caister

1. Business Process Mapping 

completed.  Firmstep building 

form.  2. Testing commenced 

1. Await Counsel’s opinion

2. Form build to be completed

3. Form reflects Counsel’s 

opinion

4. Testing and refining form

5. Landlords to test form

6. Further refining of form

7. integration completed 

1. Full testing complete, including landlord 

testing.

2. Form for Selective Licensing published 

on 26 November 2015.

2015.

3. To end of the quarter 124 applications 

received

A 1. Size and complexity 

of the form has been 

highlighted as landlords 

as a barrier to applying 

for licence this may 

affect application 

numbers as the form is 

refined.

2. Due to complexity of 

the form the ‘save form’ 

function requires 

adaptation of firmstep 

on the platform level – 

significant development 

required by provider.

Actioning landlord 

feedback on the form 

as it is received and 

refining. 

1.      Further adaption of 

form following feedback 

from landlords. Including 

adaption of help text to 

ensure plain English

2. Introduction of ‘save form’ 

function

3. Development of ‘parent 

shell’ solution to enable 

whole form to be published 

(to include HMO Licensing 

applications)

 4. Publicity for landlords / 

letting agents on the 

scheme to increase 

application rate

5. 850 Licences issued

 6. Commission new 

Housing Stock Condition 

Survey to inform 

consultation on revised 

Additional HMO licensing 

scheme

Data Analysis and 

policy information 

WP10 Project Closed and incorporated in WP14

Implementation of an 

Electronic Record 

and Document 

Management System 

(ERDMS) 

WP11 To reduce wastage and improve e-

documentation. 

27/01/15 31/03/16 Mark Bourne Initial investigations into post 

handling, legal team and estates 

team  requirements revealed a 

poor business case for the further 

largescale  IDOX investment that 

would be required. Work will now 

concentrate on optimising IDOX 

for planning and implementing a 

new version of SharePoint.

Implemented new version of 

Share point. 1. Created a test 

SharePoint Foundation 2013 

instance. 2. Created a data 

framework in which 

documents can reside.

1. Investigated, scoped and ordered IDOX 

upgrades:

i. Idox Public Access v2.1 upgrade (£5000)

ii. Core DMS upgrade to 4.2 (£3,800)

iii. Idox photo loader for DMS (£2000)

iv. Additional IDOXscan licence (£900)

v.Reinstallation of udpated software onto 

wndows 7 PC's (£950) 

vi. Upgrade to latest version of Acoliad 

LLPG Connector

8. IDOX database 'healthcheck' 

2. Pilot Sgare Point implenetation for Legal 

Services Team

i. Commenced analysis of processes and 

strorage requirements.

3. Migrate Service Area to New SharePoint:

i. Core Structure for services and projects 

designed. 

A/G 1. User acceptance 

and training 

requiremsnts for the 

new SharePoint are 

unclear.

1. The Legal Service 

team SharePoint 

implementation pilot 

will be used to infrom 

the wider roll-out of 

the new version. 

1. Implement IDOX 

upgrades for the Planning 

teams

2. Pilot the Legal Team 

storage requirements in new 

SharePoint

3. Commence migration of 

other vService areas to new 

SharePoint. 

Housing Options WP12 Housing Options to improve in the 

following two areas:

• Restructure of the front-end of Housing 

Options Service

• Develop a more effective phone 

handling service.

Both areas will be fully integrated into the 

Firmstep CRM system.

10/11/15 31/03/16 Joe Powell 1. All Business Process mapping 

completed. 2. Consultation with 

Transformation Team and CCC. 

3. Project completion date slipped 

due to decision to move from 

Locata to  'Local Pad' design and 

integration in to Firmstep and 

CCC more complex. 

1. CCC training materials 

designed and ready to deliver.  

2. Prototype version of Local 

Pad is tested and 2nd stage 

development authorised

A

Tests indicate 

additional work and 

time is required to 

finalise the software.

An abridged software 

package has been 

outlined to enable us 

to go live prior to 

software being 

completely finalised.  

An additional 8 

weeks has been 

allocated to the 

design phase to 

accommodate 

delays. 

1. Integration of Local Pad 

software into Firmstep is 

complete 2. CCC staff have 

been trained in the use of 

Firmstep for Housing 

Options purposes. 3 Go 

Live 4. Review and revsions

P
age 37



Mod.Gov 

implementation

WP13 This will include the second and third 

phase of the Mod.Gov implementation 

process and will consist of

• Developing a Library 

• Creating internal forms and templates 

for members and officers. 

Providing communications and training in 

the new forms and templates

17/11/14 29/02/16 Mark Horan A Mod Gov library has been 

developed containing key 

information for Members 

previously hosted on the Council's 

intranet. Internal forms and 

templates have been drafted and 

are being tested and refined this 

and next quarter.  Online video 

based training materials are in 

development to assist training.

1.  Add Emergency Planning 

procedures to Mod Gov 

Library and continue to refine 

library according to use. 2. 

Report back to Directors on 

sign off and quality assurance 

options with regard to the 

report writing template. 3.  

Schedule and begin face to 

face training with key 

stakeholders.   

1.  Refine library as appropriate. 2. 

Complete any outstanding training and any 

final amendments to templates and 

associated documentation.  3. Launch and 

refine templates and complete any follow up 

requirements.

A/R There is slippage in 

terms of rolling out 

training this quarter as 

it took longer than 

scheduled to seek 

agreement for workflow 

templates

Training dates have 

been scheduled with 

key officers in 

advance of the 

amended project 

completion date.  

The remainder of the 

quarter will be used 

to support and review 

use.

Training completed for key 

officers and use of Mod Gov 

for report writing monitored 

and reviewed.

Future corporate 

planning process

WP14 This will include: 

Working to ensure there is a golden 

thread between corporate priorities, 

targets and service based activities.

Publishing a timetable and to do list 

reflecting the council’s plan, review 

business cycle.

Testing the use of project based 

approaches to the design, development 

and implementation of corporate targets 

and performance management and 

consider how risk analysis is integrated.

Enhance the performance review 

process to streamline demands on 

officers and tailor information provided to 

scrutiny in line with their requirements.

01/04/15 31/03/16 Mark Horan    1. Evaluate Q1 performance 

management arrangements 

and refined for Q2 reporting. 

2. Roll out templates to assist 

with 2016/17 target drafting 

working with lead members 

and senior management to 

complete.

1. Evaluate Q2 performance arrangements 

and refine for the duration of the year. 2.  

Refined target drafts and associated work 

plans ready for public consultation and to 

support development of team targets and 

individual work plans.

G/A Corporate plan targets drafted but further work will be required to firm up work-plans.Cascade draft 

templates (post 

corporate plan 

agreement (Feb)) to 

encourage the 

completion of work 

plans before the civic 

year commences.

1. Agree new Corporate 

Plan.  Work with Scrutiny to 

assist any further 

recommendations made 

relative to their roles in the 

performance management 

process. Draft 2017/18 

corporate planning and 

performance monitoring 

timetable.

P
age 38


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 November 2015
	Minutes

	4 Quarter Three Performance and Financial Monitoring Report
	Appendix a - Directors report
	Appendix b - Performance template
	Transformation Programme Update


